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Greer, Leslie

Subject: FW: Doc 14-31926-CON Termination of Sharon Smilow

 

From: McKennan, Matthew [mailto:Matthew.McKennan@YNHH.ORG]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 4:10 PM 
To: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica 
Cc: Rosenthal, Nancy 
Subject: RE: Doc 14-31926-CON Termination of Sharon Smilow 
 
Jessica –  
 
As we discussed, please see responses to your questions in bold below.  I hope this is helpful to clarify these issues.  If 
you have any other questions, just let me know.  Thank you.  
 
Matt  

Matthew  McKennan 
Senior Planner - Yale New Haven Health 

Greenwich Hospital 
5 Perryridge Rd.   
Greenwich,  CT 06830 
Phone:(203) 863-3458  
Mob:(203) 907-9858 

Matthew.McKennan@YNHH.ORG 
www.greenwichhospital.org 

Please consider the environment 
before printing this email. 

From: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica [mailto:Jessica.Schaeffer-Helmecki@ct.gov]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 8:50 AM 
To: McKennan, Matthew 
Subject: FW: Doc 14-31926-CON Termination of Sharon Smilow 
 
Hi Matt, below please find my original questions.  Thank you, 
 
Jessica 
 

From: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica  
Sent: Friday, March 13, 2015 12:36 PM 
To: 'nancy.rosenthal@greenwichhospital.org' 
Subject: Doc 14-31926-CON Termination of Sharon Smilow 
 
Dear Nancy, 
 
Thank you for your responses to our completeness questions regarding Yale-New Haven Hospital’s proposed termination 
of services at the Sharon Smilow site. To avoid a second completeness letter, I was hoping you could clarify a few things 
about the modified financial attachment on page 81.   

 
 The header states these figures are just for the Smilow Sharon site.  Is that accurate? These figures are for 

Yale-New Haven Hospital (YNHH), which includes Smilow Cancer Hospital and Smilow at Sharon. To 
clarify, the column “w/out the CON” shows the YNHH financials including the Smilow Sharon site, 
whereas the column “with the CON” shows the YNHH financials after the Smilow Sharon site closes and 
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is consolidated into the site in Torrington. The “incremental” column shows the change in revenues and 
expenses due to the consolidation.     

 The spreadsheet shows decreasing revenue associated with reduced patient volume but there appears to be no 
corresponding reduction in expenses. Why is that? The Smilow Sharon business is effectively being 
transferred to Torrington. As noted on page 67 of the Completeness Questions, physician recruits have 
been/are being hired for the site in Torrington. The expectation is that the newly hired physicians will be 
ramping up volume over the next year and thus, the variable costs related to staffing and supplies will 
not change over the course of the next twelve months. Supply costs will vary with volume but the 
expenses are immaterial. To be conservative in the overall model, revenue associated with any increased 
new volume in Torrington was omitted, although the transfer of Connecticut volume currently seen in 
Sharon was included.  In summary, the labor expenses remain constant because the staff at the Sharon 
Smilow site are being redeployed to Torrington. On the non-labor side, although it appears that Sharon 
Hospital will likely allow YNHH to end the lease term early, the lease payment was conservatively left in 
the Financial Attachment because the agreement is not yet final. There will be savings related to the 
lease expense when the agreement is complete. Other non-labor expenses such as supplies are minimal 
and will likely be incurred in Torrington when the Smilow Sharon business is consolidated to that site.  

 
Additionally, the advertisement for an the oncologist positions on page 76 states the positions are in New Haven rather 
than Sharon.  Were there any ads that specifically recruited physicians for Sharon? No, the recruiting office for the Yale 
School of Medicine and Smilow Cancer Hospital is based in New Haven, and all physicians are recruited through 
this flagship site. During the recruitment process, the various community-based sites are discussed with 
incoming physicians who are then hired and assigned to a community practice. There was no interest by any 
recruits in staffing the site in Sharon because it was a low volume site that lacks a full complement of oncology 
services and is open only a few days a week.   
 
Thank you and please let me know if you have any questions, 
 
 
 

Jessica Schaeffer-Helmecki 
Office of Health Care Access 
Department of Public Health 

410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13HCA 
Hartford, CT 06134 

 
(860) 509-8075 

 

 
 
 
This message originates from the Yale New Haven Health System. The information contained in this message may be privileged and confidential. If 
you are the intended recipient you must maintain this message in a secure and confidential manner. If you are not the intended recipient, please 
notify the sender immediately and destroy this message. Thank you.  



1

Greer, Leslie

From: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 9:39 AM
To: Greer, Leslie
Subject: FW: CON 15-3196 - Sharon Smilow follow-up question
Attachments: Letter to Patients Sharon.pdf

Hi Leslie, below is correspondence for CON 15-31969. Thank you. 
 

From: McKennan, Matthew [mailto:Matthew.McKennan@YNHH.ORG]  
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 4:48 PM 
To: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica 
Cc: Rosenthal, Nancy 
Subject: FW: CON 15-3196 - Sharon Smilow follow-up question 
 
Jessica –  
 
Per our discussion, please see the response to your questions in bold below.   
 
Thank you and have a nice weekend.   
 
 
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
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 10:53 AM 
To: Rosenthal, Nancy; McKennan, Matthew 
Subject: CON 15-3196 - Sharon Smilow follow-up question 
 
Hi Matt and Nancy, 
 
As more people have reviewed your application, a couple more questions came up.   
 

1. Have you drafted any communication notifying current/past patients of Sharon’s closure? We did see the 
retirement letter from Dr. Kruger, but have you prepared anything for all the patients giving more specific 
information about the other offices?  If so, please submit a copy. Please see the attached letter in draft form. 
As noted on page 73 of the Completeness Response, a letter will be mailed to patients at least thirty days 
before the site closes, and patients will be rescheduled, per their direction, in Torrington, where medical 
records are available via the same EPIC electronic medical record used in Sharon. As you have 
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mentioned, a similar letter from Dr. Kruger was previously sent to patients of the site about his retirement 
in January of 2015. This letter was attached on page 40 of the initial CON application.       
 

2. Table 2 on page 17 shows the available capacity and utilization for FY14 and FY15. The utilization numbers are 
approximated.  We’d like to have the actual per month average for both Sharon and Torrington with updated 
numbers for FY15. The actual per month average for both Sharon and Torrington is as follows: the average 
number of visits per month at Sharon was 275 in FY14 and 216 in FY15 YTD (Oct-Feb); the average 
number of visits per month at Torrington was 1515 in FY14 and 1524 in FY15 YTD (Oct-Feb).        
 

I apologize for the last-minuteness of this but we need this information today or Monday.  Would that be possible?  I’m 
available to answer any questions or clarify.  
 
Thank you, 
 

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



[INSERT LETTERHEAD] 

DRAFT v1 

MONTH xx, 2015 

 

Patient Name 

Patient Address 

City, State, Zip 

 

Dear Patient First Name, 

With the recent retirement of a couple of our physicians,  Smilow Cancer Hospital will 
consolidate its Northwest Connecticut outpatient cancer services in a single location. The 
Smilow Cancer Care Center at Sharon Hospital will close on XXXXXXX XX, 2015, and all 
follow-up care for patients will take place at the Smilow Cancer Care Center in Torrington. 

Our physicians and staff in Torrington will continue to provide you with the high quality 
oncology and hematology care that you deserve. The Smilow staff will coordinate your 
future appointments and ensure that you have no interruptions in your care and treatment. 

If you have any questions about your new physician or appointment schedule, please call 
860-364-0531.  

Sincerely, 

 

 

Anne Chiang, MD, PhD 
Assistant Professor of Medicine, Yale School of Medicine 
Chief Network Officer and Deputy Chief Medical Officer, Smilow Cancer Network 
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Greer, Leslie

From: Lazarus, Steven
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 9:14 AM
To: Greer, Leslie
Cc: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica; Riggott, Kaila; Martone, Kim; Hansted, Kevin
Subject: FW: Deemed Complete:  Yale Smilow Sharon Cancer Center termination

Please add to the record. 
 
Steve 
 
 

Steven W. Lazarus 
Associate Health Care Analyst 
Division of Office of Health Care Access 
Connecticut Department of Public Health 
410 Capitol Avenue 
Hartford, CT 06134 
Phone: 860‐418‐7012 
Fax:        860‐418‐7053 
 

From: Wysocki, Richard  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 8:47 AM 
To: Lazarus, Steven 
Subject: RE: Deemed Complete: Yale Smilow Sharon Cancer Center termination 
 
 
DSS has reviewed the Applicant’s information as provided by OHCA, and based on this information, it appears that there 
may not be any impact to the Medicaid program.  Thanks. 
 
 

Wysocki, Richard 
rich.wysocki@ct.gov 
 
DSS 
25 Sigourney St. 11th Flr. Rate Setting & CON unit 
Hartford, CT  06106 
860-424-5103 Direct 
 
www.ct.gov/dss 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: The information contained in this e-mail may be confidential and protected from general disclosure. If the recipient or reader of this e-mail is 
not the intended recipient or a person responsible to receive this e-mail for the intended recipient, please do not disseminate, distribute or copy it. If you received this e-mail in 
error, please notify the sender by replying to this message and delete this e-mail immediately. We will take immediate and appropriate action to see to it that this mistake is 
corrected.[*LD*] 

From: Lazarus, Steven  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 8:33 AM 
To: Wysocki, Richard 
Cc: Martone, Kim; Hansted, Kevin; Riggott, Kaila 
Subject: FW: Deemed Complete: Yale Smilow Sharon Cancer Center termination 



2

 
Rich, 
 
Please see the email below containing details for the CON application being deemed Complete by OHCA.  Please let us 
know if DSS expects any impact on the Medicaid program, as a result of this proposal. 
 
Thank you, 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 8:23 AM 
To: Lazarus, Steven 
Subject: Deemed Complete: Yale Smilow Sharon Cancer Center termination 
 
 
Hi Steve, 
 
DN 14-31926 was deemed complete yesterday and I believe needs to be sent to DSS? Yale-New Haven Smilow cancer 
center seeks to terminate their services located in Sharon Hospital.  Two doctors currently treat oncology and non-
oncology patients out of that office and both will be retired by mid-2015.  The applicant intends to schedule patients in its 
Torrington office (located within Charlotte Hungerford), which offers more comprehensive oncological care including 
radiation therapies.  In FY14, 16 of the Applicant’s patients had Medicaid—6 of which were for non-oncology services and 
could continue to receive care in Sharon Hospital.   
 
Below are the historical and projected payer mixes for Connecticut-based patients.  The figures include both oncology and 
non-oncology patients. Do you need any additional information? 

 
         HISTORICAL PAYER MIX BY FISCAL YEAR* 

Payer 
FY 2012** FY 2013 FY 2014  

Patients % Patients % Patients %  

Medicare 200 68% 370 68% 366 68%  

Medicaid 5 2% 13 2.0% 16 3%  

CHAMPUS & 
TriCare 

0 0% 0 0% 0 0%  

Total 
Government 

205 70% 383 70% 382 71%  

Commercial 
Insurers 

22 19% 140 26% 152 28%  

Other (incl 
uninsured and 
self-pay) 

32 11% 18 3% 1 0%  
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Workers 
Compensation 

0 0% 0 0% 0 0%  

Total Non-
Government 

87 30% 158 29% 153 28%  

Total Payer Mix 292 100% 541 99% 535 99%  

 
*     The fiscal year is from October 1 to September 30 
**   Includes only 4 months of data as Applicant acquired the site in July 

 

 
 

 
PROJECTED PAYER MIX BY FISCAL YEAR 

Payer 
Projected

FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 

Patients % Patients % Patients % 

Medicare* 510 42% 510 42% 510 42% 

Medicaid* 216 18% 216 18% 216 18% 

Total Government 
726 60% 726 60% 726 60% 

Commercial 421 35% 421 35% 421 35% 

Uninsured 63 5% 63 5% 63 5% 

Total Non-
Government 484 40% 484 40% 484 40% 

Total Payer Mix 1,210 100% 1,210 100% 1,210 100% 

 
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

From: Greer, Leslie
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2015 11:34 AM
To: Nancy Levitt Rosenthal
Cc: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica; Riggott, Kaila; Hansted, Kevin; Martone, Kim
Subject: Hearing Notices 
Attachments: 31969_201504161125.pdf

Nancy,  
Attached is the May 6th hearing notice that has been submitted  to publish on 4/20/15.  
 

Leslie M. Greer 
CT Department of Public Health 
Office of Health Care Access  
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA 
Hartford, CT 06134 
Phone: (860) 418‐7013 
Fax: (860) 418‐7053 
Website: www.ct.gov/ohca 
 Please	consider	the	environment	before	printing	this	message 
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Greer, Leslie

From: ADS <ADS@graystoneadv.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2015 11:36 AM
To: Greer, Leslie
Subject: Re: Hearing Request

Good day! 
 
 
Thanks so much for your ad submission.  
We will be in touch shortly and look forward to serving you. 

Consider adding a Priority Job Upgrade to your Higheredjobs listing. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: New Department of Labor guidelines allow web based advertising when hiring foreign nationals. To provide required 
documentation Graystone will retrieve & archive verification for the 1st and 30th days of posting for $115.00/web site.  If required, notify 
Graystone when ad placement is approved. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to contact us at the number below. 
 
We sincerely appreciate your business. 
 
Thank you, 
Graystone Group Advertising 
  
2710 North Avenue 
Bridgeport, CT 06604 
Phone: 800-544-0005 
Fax: 203-549-0061  
 
E-mail new ad requests to: ads@graystoneadv.com 
http://www.graystoneadv.com/ 
 
 
 

From: <Greer>, Leslie <Leslie.Greer@ct.gov> 
Date: Thursday, April 16, 2015 11:13 AM 
To: ads <ads@graystoneadv.com> 
Cc: "Olejarz, Barbara" <Barbara.Olejarz@ct.gov> 
Subject: Hearing Request 
 
To Whom it May Concern,  
Please post the two attached hearing notices in the New Haven Register by 4/20/15. For billing purposes, refer to 
requisition 48419. In addition, please provide me the “proof of publication” when they are available.  
  
Thanks,  
  

Leslie M. Greer  

CT Department of Public Health 
Office of Health Care Access  
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA 
Hartford, CT 06134 
Phone: (860) 418‐7013 
Fax: (860) 418‐7053 
Website: www.ct.gov/ohca 
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Please	consider	the	environment	before	printing	this	message 
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Greer, Leslie

From: Laurie <Laurie@graystoneadv.com>
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2015 5:33 PM
To: Greer, Leslie
Cc: Olejarz, Barbara
Subject: FW: Hearing Request
Attachments: 14-31964np NH Register.doc; 14-31969np NH Register[2].doc

 
Your legal notice is all set to run as follows: 
 
14-31964 New Haven Register, 4/20 issue - $461.93 
14-31969 New Haven Register, 4/20 issue - $447.92 
 
Thanks, 
Laurie Miller  

Graystone Group Advertising 
2710 North Ave., Ste 200, Bridgeport, CT 06604 

Ph: 203-549-0060, ext 319, Fax: 203-549-0061,Toll free: 800-544-0005 
email: laurie@graystoneadv.com  

www.graystoneadv.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

From: "Greer, Leslie" <Leslie.Greer@ct.gov> 
Date: Thu, 16 Apr 2015 16:03:37 +0000 
To: Laurie Miller <laurie@graystoneadv.com> 
Cc: "Olejarz, Barbara" <Barbara.Olejarz@ct.gov> 
Subject: RE: Hearing Request 
 

Laurie,  
I’ve attached the correct one. 
Thanks, 
Leslie  
  

From: Laurie [mailto:Laurie@graystoneadv.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2015 12:01 PM 
To: Greer, Leslie 
Cc: Olejarz, Barbara 
Subject: FW: Hearing Request 
  
Leslie: 
  
The 1st Attachment for 14‐31964 is in letter form, not legal notice form.  I don’t know what part of it is to be published.  The 
2nd attachment (14‐31969np NH Register) is fine.  Please resend the correct attachment for 14‐31964. 
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Thanks, 
Laurie  

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
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

RETURN DATE: MAY 26, 2015 :SUPERIOR COURT

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. :JUDICIAL DISTRICT
:OF NEW HAVEN

V :AT NEW HAVEN

THE WIDOWERS, HEIRS AND/OR :MARCH 27, 2015
CREDITORS OF THE ESTATE OF
MYRTLE E. BRUCE., ET AL.

NOTICE TO THE WIDOWERS, HEIRS AND/OR CREDITORS
OF THE ESTATE OF MYRTLE E. BRUCE AND ALL UNKNOWN
PERSONS, CLAIMING OR WHO MAY CLAIM, ANY RIGHTS,
TITLE, INTEREST OR ESTATE IN OR LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE
UPON THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS COMPLAINT,
ADVERSE TO THE PLAINTIFF, WHETHER SUCH CLAIM OR

POSSIBLE CLAIM BE VESTED OR CONTINGENT.

The Plaintiff has named as a Defendant, THE WIDOWERS,
HEIRS AND/OR CREDITORS OF THE ESTATE OF MYRTLE E.
BRUCE, and all unknown persons, claiming or who may
claim, any rights, title, interest or estate in or lien or en-
cumbrance upon the property described in this Complaint,
adverse to the Plaintiff, whether such claim or possible
claim can be vested or contingent, if not living, as a party
defendant(s) in the complaint which it is bringing to the
above-named Court seeking a foreclosure of its mortgage
upon premises known as 3 Brockett Place, East Haven, CT
06512.

The Plaintiff has represented to the said Court, bymeans of
an affidavit annexed to the Complaint, that, despite all rea-
sonable efforts to ascertain such information, it has been
unable to determine the identity and/or whereabouts of
the WIDOWERS, HEIRS AND OR CREDITORS OF THE ESTATE
OF MYRTLE E. BRUCE, and all unknown persons, claiming
or who may claim, any rights, title, interest or estate in or
lien or encumbrance upon the property described in this
Complaint, adverse to the Plaintiff, whether such claim or
possible claim can be vested or contingent, if not living.

Now, Therefore, it is hereby ORDERED that notice of the
institution of this action be given to said THE WIDOWER,
HEIRS AND/OR CREDITORS OF THE ESTATE OF MYRTLE E.
BRUCE and all unknown persons, claiming or who may
claim, any rights, title, interest or estate in or lien or en-
cumbrance upon the property described in this Complaint,
adverse to the Plaintiff, whether such claim or possible
claim can be vested or contingent, by some proper officer
causing a true and attested copy of this Order of Notice to
be published in the New Haven Register, once a week for
two successive weeks, commencing on or before May 6,
2015, and that return of such service bemade to this Court.

BY THE COURT
By JUDGE ECKER
April 7, 2015

A TRUE COPY ATTEST:
Edward DiLieto State Marshal
New Haven County

STATE OF CONNECTICUT

RETURN DATE: MAY 12, 2015 :SUPERIOR COURT

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, :JUDICIAL DISTRICT
FKA THE BANK OF NEW YORK AS :OF NEW HAVEN
TRUSTEE FOR THE CERTIFICATE-,
HOLDERS OF THE CWABS, INC.,
ASSET-BACKED CERTIFICATES,
SERIES 2005-11

V :AT NEW HAVEN

THE WIDOW, HEIRS AND/OR :MARCH 18, 2015
CREDITORS OF THE ESTATE OF
JOSEPH LACASSE A/K/A JOSEPH
LACASSE, JR., ET AL.

NOTICE TO THEWIDOW, HEIRS AND/OR CREDITORS OF THE
ESTATE OF JOSEPH LACASSE A/K/A JOSEPH LACASSE, JR.,
AND ALL UNKNOWN PERSONS, CLAIMING OR WHO MAY
CLAIM, ANY RIGHTS, TITLE, INTEREST OR ESTATE IN OR
LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE UPON THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED

IN THIS COMPLAINT, ADVERSE TO THE PLAINTIFF,
WHETHER SUCH CLAIM OR POSSIBLE CLAIM BE VESTED

OR CONTINGENT.

The Plaintiff has named as aDefendant, THEWIDOW,HEIRS
AND/OR CREDITORS, and all unknown persons, claiming or
who may claim, any rights, title, interest or estate in or
lien or encumbrance upon the property described in this
Complaint, adverse to the Plaintiff, whether such claim
or possible claim can be vested or contingent, if not liv-
ing, as a party defendant(s) in the complaint which it is
bringing to the above-named Court seeking a foreclosure
of its mortgage upon premises known as 15 WEYBOSSET
STREET, HAMDEN, CT 06514.

The Plaintiff has represented to the said Court, by means
of an affidavit annexed to the Complaint, that, despite
all reasonable efforts to ascertain such information, it
has been unable to determine the identity and/or where-
abouts of the WIDOW, HEIRS AND OR CREDITORS, and all
unknown persons, claiming or who may claim, any rights,
title, interest or estate in or lien or encumbrance upon the
property described in this Complaint, adverse to the Plain-
tiff, whether such claim or possible claim can be vested or
contingent, if not living.

Now, Therefore, it is hereby ORDERED that notice of the in-
stitution of this action be given to said THE WIDOW, HEIRS
AND/OR CREDITORS and all unknown persons, claiming or
whomay claim, any rights, title, interest or estate in or lien
or encumbrance upon the property described in this Com-
plaint, adverse to the Plaintiff, whether such claim or pos-
sible claim can be vested or contingent, by some proper
officer causing a true and attested copy of this Order of
Notice to be published in the New Haven Register, once a
week for two successive weeks, commencing on or before
April 22, 2015, and that return of such service be made to
this Court.

BY THE COURT
By JUDGE ECKER
April 7, 2015

A TRUE COPY ATTEST:
Edward DiLieto State Marshal
New Haven County

PUBLIC NOTICE
Office of Health Care Access Public Hearing

Statute Reference:
19a-639
Applicant: Shoreline Wellness Behavioral Health Clinic, LLC
Town: West Haven
Docket Number: 14-31964-CON
Proposal: Establishment of a Freestanding Behavioral
Health Clinic
Date: May 20, 2015
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Place: Department of Public Health, Office of Health Care

Access
410 Capitol Avenue, 3rd Floor Hearing Room
Hartford, CT 06134

Any person who wishes to request status in the above
listed public hearing may file a written petition no later
than May 15, 2015 (5 calendar days before the date of
the hearing) pursuant to the Regulations of Connecticut
State Agencies §§ 19a-9-26 and 19a-9-27. If the request
for status is granted, such person shall be designated as a
Party, an Intervenor or an Informal Participant in the above
proceeding. Please check OHCA’s website at www.ct.gov/
ohca for more information or call OHCA directly at (860)
418-7001. If you require aid or accommodation to partici-
pate fully and fairly in this hearing, please phone (860)
418-7001.

PUBLIC NOTICE
Office of Health Care Access Public Hearing

Statute Reference:
19a-639
Applicant: Yale-New Haven Hospital
Town: Sharon
Docket Number: 14-31969-CON
Proposal: Termination of Outpatient Oncology Services
Offered by Smilow Cancer Hospital at Sharon Hospital
Date: May 6, 2015
Time: 4:00 – 6:00 p.m.
Place: Sharon Town Hall

63 Main Street
Sharon, CT 06069

Any person who wishes to request status in the above
listed public hearing may file a written petition no later
than May 1, 2015 (5 calendar days before the date of the
hearing) pursuant to the Regulations of Connecticut State
Agencies §§ 19a-9-26 and 19a-9-27. If the request for sta-
tus is granted, such person shall be designated as a Party,
an Intervenor or an Informal Participant in the above pro-
ceeding. Please check OHCA’s website at www.ct.gov/
ohca for more information or call OHCA directly at (860)
418-7001. If you require aid or accommodation to partici-
pate fully and fairly in this hearing, please phone (860)
418-7001.
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LEGAL NOTICES

LEGAL NOTICE
TOWN OF GUILFORD
SALE OF 12 TOWN-OWNED

PARCELS
BID#10-1415

(Shore Drive and Wood-
land Road area)

The Town of Guilford is
soliciting offers for the
purchase of twelve Town-
owned parcels of land lo-
cated in the Shore Drive
and Woodland Road area.
The parcels are identified,
respectively, as lots #1, 2,
141, 163, 167, 177 and 178
on Assessor Map #57; and
lots # 83, 88, 91, 132 and
194 on Assessor Map #55.
Bidders may bid on any
combination of parcels.
Sealed Bids will be due on
FridayMay 15, 2015 at 2:00
p.m. at the office of the
First Selectman, on the
second floor of Town Hall,
31 Park Street, Guilford,
CT 06437. Bids received
after this date and time
will be rejected. Sealed
Bid envelopes (includ-
ing overnight packaging)
should be clearly labeled
with bid number, bid title
and marked “time sensi-
tive”. In accordance with
Chapter 94 of the Guilford
Town Code, all sealed of-
fers will be opened at the
Board of Selectmen (BOS)
meeting held on Monday
May 18, 2015 at 8:30 a.m.

Within 5 business days of
bid award, the successful
bidder will be required to
execute a Purchase and
Sale Agreement on the
Town form and deliver
an initial deposit in the
amount of ten percent
(10%) of the bid (pur-
chase price). At closing,
the Town will deliver title
by quit claim deed. The
Bid proposal form, and
Purchase and Sale Agree-
ment are available on the
Town website at www.
ci.guilford.ct.us.

Any questions regarding
the properties may be
directed, in writing only,
to the Purchasing De-
partment at millmanp@
ci.guilford.ct.us.The Town
of Guilford reserves the
right to reject any or all
bids; or to waive defects
in same, if it deems such
to be in the best interest
of the Town.

Joseph S. Mazza
First Selectman

NEW HAVEN
CITY PLAN
COMMISSION
NOTICE OF

DECISIONS 4/15/15

Approve with conditions:

285 NICOLL STREET.
Coastal Site Plan Review
and Site Plan Review for
conversion of warehouse
space to office. (Owner/
Applicant/Agent: Rakesh
Narang of Narang New
Haven Co., LLC)

260 CROWN STREET. Site
Plan Review for conver-
sion of vacant space to
residential units. (Owner:
Metro 260 LLC; Applicant/
Agent: James Segaloff of
Susman, Duffy & Segaloff,
P.C.)

NOTICE TO
CREDITORS

ESTATE OF Darrell F. Tyson

The Hon. Edward C. Burt,
Jr., Judge of the Court of
Probate, District of Ham-
den - Bethany Probate
District, by decree dated
April 8, 2015, ordered that
all claims must be pre-
sented to the fiduciary at
the address below. Failure
to promptly present any
such claim may result in
the loss of rights to recov-
er on such claim.

Valerie A. Dondi, Clerk

The fiduciary is:

Ralph Gatison
c/o Keisha S. Gatison, Esq.
Gatison Law Firm
110 Washington Avenue
3rd Floor
North Haven, CT 06473
577279

NOTICE TO
CREDITORS

ESTATE OF William
Robert O’Connor

The Hon. Edward C. Burt,
Jr., Judge of the Court of
Probate, District of Ham-
den - Bethany Probate
District, by decree dated
April 1, 2015, ordered that
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

Linda M. O’Connor
c/o Noah Eisenhandler,
Esq.
Law offices of
Noah Eisenhandler
11264 Townsend Avenue
New Haven, CT 06512
560586

LEGAL NOTICES

Public Notice
to Bus and
Taxi Operators

The Town of Orange Com-
munity Services Depart-
ment is applying for a
capital grand under Sec-
tion 5310 Enhanced Mo-
bility of Seniors and Indi-
viduals with Disabilities
of the Federal Transit Act,
as amended in the Mov-
ing Ahead for Progress in
the 21st Century [MAP-
21] legislation, to replace
a vehicle to be used in
meeting the special trans-
portation needs of seniors
and/or individuals with
disabilities in the Town of
Orange.

Any interested transit or
paratransit operator in
the proposed service area
may review the proposed
application by contact-
ing Joan Cretella Direc-
tor of Orange Community
Services Department 525
Orange Center Raod, Or-
ange, CT 06477 or call at
203-891-4786.

A public hearing will be
held if requested by inter-
ested parties.

Any comments should
then be sent to the Town
of Orange Community
Services Department with
a copy to the South Cen-
tral Regional Council of
Governments, 127 Wash-
ington Avenue, 4th floor
West, North Haven, CT
06473.

The West Haven
Planning and Zoning
Commission made the
following decisions Tues-
day, April 14, 2015 in the
Harriet North Room, 2nd
Floor, City Hall, 355 Main
Street, West Haven, CT at
6:30 P.M.

5 Industry Drive Exten-
sion: Special Permit appli-
cation to allow the use of
a 12x60; 720 sq. ft. office
trailer and outdoor stor-
age facility of non hazard-
ous goods in the (Industri-
al Planned Development)
IPD zone under sections
85,92 and table 39.2 of
the West Haven Zoning
Regulations Applicant: JB
HUNT Owner: Borrelli Re-
ality LLC File SP 15-113
CONTINUED

5 Industry Drive Exten-
sion: Site Plan application
to allow a 12x 60; 720 sq.
ft. office trailer and out-
door storage facility of
non-hazardous goods in
the (Industrial Planned
Development) IPD zone
under section 75 and ta-
ble 39.2 of the West Haven
Zoning Regulations Ap-
plicant: JB HUNT Owner:
Borrelli Reality LLC File
SR 15-114
CONTINUED

Gene Sullivan
Chairman

TOWN OF HAMDEN,
CONNECTICUT
LEGISLATIVE
COUNCIL
NOTICE OF

PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given of a
Public Hearing to be held
by the Economic & De-
velopment Committee on
Monday, April 27, 2015, at
7:20 P.M. in the Legislative
Council Chambers at the
Memorial Town Hall, 2372
Whitney Avenue, for the
following purpose: Reso-
lution authorizing the sale
of property at 560 Newhall
Street – Hamden Middle
School

April 20, 2015
Kim Renta
Clerk of the Council

CLASSIFIEDS hold many,
many opportunities. They give
opportunity for you to buy items,
meet people, sell unwanted items,
find housing, save money, earn a
couple bucks, and much, much
more.

HOW TO WRITE a classified
ad that sells: First - Be com-
plete. Second - Include the
price. And third - Be available.
Call today and we will be happy
to help you write the most effec-
tive ad.

LEGAL NOTICES

WOODBRIDGE
WARNING:
NOTICE OF

PUBLIC HEARING

PRELIMINARY
BUDGET HEARING

The Board of Finance of
the Town of Woodbridge
will hold a Public Hearing
on the Preliminary Budget
for the fiscal year end-
ing June 30, 2016, and on
the budget requests con-
tained therein on:

MONDAY, APRIL 27, 2015
AT 7:30 P.M.
IN THE

CENTER GYMNASIUM
4 MEETINGHOUSE LANE
WOODBRIDGE, CT

Dated at Woodbridge,
Connecticut, this 20th day
of April 2015.

Board of Finance
Town of Woodbridge

PROBATE NOTICES

NOTICE TO
CREDITORS

ESTATE OF Ruth Savitt

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

Raith Rosenthal
c/o Stuart A. Margolis,
Esq.
Berdon, Young & Margolis
P.C.,
132 Temple Street
New Haven, CT 06510
568300

BIRDS
Baby Parrots-African Greys-
Cockatoos 203-824-1717

DOGS
Bull Dogs, Poodles Standard &
Mixes. Bengal Kittens. Health
guaranteed, Vet checked,
shots. $250+. 860-930-4001

APPLIANCES

Affordable
Washers, Dryers, Stoves,
Refrigs. Delivery Available

203 - 284 - 8986

FURNITURE
Tan 7 Piece Living Room set
incl couch w/queen bed, $300
Lt Brown 4 piece bedroom set
$200, all in good condition
Moving, must sell
Call 203-287-9244

DIRT, SAND & SHELL
FARM FRESH TOP SOIL

AND FILL

BEST QUALITY!

REASONABLE DELIVERY RATES.

CALL 203-488-7929

AUTOS WANTED

ageSalvNICHOLS buyWill-

wMeado46equip.vyheaies,
-atterbcopper,ailers,tralum.,

trucks,cars,steel,apscroury

. 860-669-2808d. Clinton CTT. 860-669-2808R

BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITIES

GOING OUT OF BUSINESS
Entire Contents of

Working Laundromat.
Buyer must take all. $25,000.

Call 203-377-3782
Pet Shop biz, Orange, CT for sale.
Est 1972. Owner retiring. 2500
sf. Long term lease option avail.

$89,000 203-232-3404

YOU’LL NEVER KNOW how
effective a classified ad is until you
use one yourself! Reach the entire
area without leaving the comfort of
your home. Call and place your
classified today to sell those
unwanted items.

CLASSIFIEDS help new
families find new homes.
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Greer, Leslie

From: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 11:46 AM
To: Willcox, Jennifer
Cc: Greer, Leslie; Riggott, Kaila; Hansted, Kevin
Subject: Late Files: YNHH Sharon Smilow 14-31969

Hi Jennifer— 
 
We had two late files come out of our May 6th hearing:  

1. The script employees are using to communicate the office’s closure to patients 
2. The number of non-oncology Connecticut residents with Medicaid for most recent two fiscal years 

 
We were expecting them on Friday, May 8th. Will you be able to submit them soon?  
 
Thanks much, 
 
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

From: Noel, Irene <Irene.Noel@ynhh.org>
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 11:57 AM
To: Willcox, Jennifer; Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica
Cc: Greer, Leslie; Riggott, Kaila; Hansted, Kevin
Subject: RE: Late Files: YNHH Sharon Smilow 14-31969
Attachments: 2015 08 05_ Sharon OHCA CON request_LRSD_JW.pdf

Attached as requested. 
 

From: Willcox, Jennifer  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 11:49 AM 
To: 'Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica' 
Cc: Greer, Leslie; Riggott, Kaila; Hansted, Kevin; Noel, Irene 
Subject: RE: Late Files: YNHH Sharon Smilow 14-31969 
 
Cc’ing Irene Noel, so that she has everyone’s email address, and she will forward what was submitted on Friday (the 
hard copies were mailed on Friday, and so might not have been received, but the electronic copies should have 
arrived).  We will re‐send.  Thanks. 
 
 
Jennifer N. Willcox, Deputy General Counsel 
Legal & Risk Services Department 
Yale New Haven Health System 
789 Howard Avenue, CB 230 
New Haven, CT  06511 
203‐688‐2291 
203‐688‐3162 (fax) 
Jennifer.Willcox@ynhh.org 
 
 
 

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



~' YALE NEW HAVEN
HEALTH

May 8, 2015

VIA ELECTRONIC &REGULAR 1VIAIL

Kevin Hansted
Hearing Officer
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue
P.O. Box 340308
Hartford, CT 06106

Re: Yale-New Haven Hospital (YNHH)
.Certificate of Need Application —Late File
Docket Number 14-31969-CON

Dear Hearing Officer Hansted:

Please find enclosed the late file documents requested at the Certificate of Need hearing held on May 6,
2015, under Docket Number 14-31969-CON.

Late File # 1 is a script that was prepared to guide office staff at the Sharon site when communicating with
patients about the retirement of the oncology physicians at the site and the potential closure of the site.
Lisa Shomsky, the Clinical Program Manager for the Sharon and Torrington sites, has informed me that
in November 2014 she emailed the attached script to Josephine Heacox, the primary nurse in Sharon. Ms.
Shomsky and Ms: Heacox reviewed this script, discussed its content, and then shared it with other staff at
the site (including another nurse, the receptionist, and a patient care assistant). All of the office staff in
Sharon used this script as guidance, beginning in December of 2014, when speaking with patients to
ensure a seamless transition of care.

Late File #2 shows the number of Medicaid patients from Connecticut who visited the Sharon site for a
non-oncology purpose from FY12 through FY14.

Should you need anything further, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
s

{ ~ ~ ~

.~

Jennifer Willcox, Esq.
Deputy General Counsel
Yale-New Haven Health System

Enclosures

789 Howard Avenue
New Haven, CT 06519



Yale-New-Haven Hospital

Reconfiguration and Consolidation of Outpatient Oncology Services
offered by Smilow Cancer Hospital in Sharon, CT

Docket Number: 14-31969-CON

Late File Testimony

May 8, 2015



Docket Number: 14-31969-CON
May 8, 2015

Yale-New Haven Hospital

Certificate of Need Application
Docket Number: 14-31969-CON

_ __ __ _ __
Reconfiguration and Consolidation of Outpatient Oncology Services

offered by Smilow Cancer Hospital in Sharon, CT

Late File Testimony

1. Please provide a copy of the script used by staff at the Sharon site to communicate with patients
about its impending closure.

Resuonse:
See E~iibit A.

2. Please provide a table that shows the number of Medicaid patients from Connecticut who visited
the Sharon site for anon-oncology purpose from FY12 through FY14.

Resuonse•
See the table below.

CTNON-ONCOLOGY MEDICAID PATIENTS AT THE SMILOW SITE ATSHARON*

FY DIAGNOSIS CITY STATE PATIENTS FY TOTAL

FALLS VILLAGE CT 1

FY14 Non-Oncology LAKEVILLE CT 1 3

SALISBURY CT 1

CORNWALL BRIDGE CT 1

LAKEVILLE CT 1
FY13 Non-Oncology 5

SALISBURY CT 1

SHARON CT 2

FY12 Non-Oncology 
AL SBIURY CT 1 2

*Source: EPIC



EXHIBIT A



SHARON OFFICE CLOSURE

SCRIPTING FOR STAFF

For new referrals:

Beginning in February, we will be changing our hours of operation and will be

open only one day per month for routine visits. Our physicians and staff would be

happy to see and treat you in our Torrington, CT location. I would be happy to

assist in making an appointment for you at that time. If that is not convenient for

you, we can also provide you with the names of other similar providers in

Massachusetts and New York that you may want to contact. "

For existing patients of Dr. Kruger:

"As you are already aware, Dr. Kruger is retiring effective January 16, 2015. Upon

his retirement, we will be changing our hours of operation and will be open only

one day per month, beginning in February, 2015, for routine visits. Our physicians

and staff would be happy to take over your care in our Torrington location.

would be happy to assist in making an appointment for you at that time."

For existing patients of Dr. Lowenthal:

Beginning in February 2015, we will be changing our hours of operation and Dr.

Lowenthal will only be seeing patients one day per month in Sharon for routine

visits. We will no longer provide chemotherapy treatment in our Sharon office.

However, he will continue to provide your care full time in our Torrington

location. I would be happy to assist in making an appointment for you in

Torrington at that time, so you can continue your treatment and care

uninterrupted.

If there is a question about the office closing eventually, or people are inquiring

about lack of oncologic availability of services in Sharon, the staff may reply:,

Because of the retirement of Dr. Kruger, we are seeking regulatory approval to

close this location. We anticipate receiving approval in four to six months. So, it

is very important to plan for your care.
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Greer, Leslie

From: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 1:45 PM
To: Greer, Leslie
Subject: FW: 15-31969-CON Final Decision
Attachments: 15-31969 Final Decision.pdf

Please add this to the record. Thank you! 
 

From: Schaeffer-Helmecki, Jessica  
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 1:45 PM 
To: 'Rosenthal, Nancy' 
Cc: 'Jennifer.Willcox@ynhh.org' 
Subject: 15-31969-CON Final Decision 
 
 
Dear Ms. Rosenthal, 
 
Attached please find the final decision in the matter of Yale-New Hospital’s application to terminate outpatient oncology 
services in Sharon, CT (docket number 15-31969). 
 
 
Best Regards, 

Jessica Schaeffer-Helmecki 
Office of Health Care Access 
Department of Public Health 

410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13HCA 
Hartford, CT 06134 

 
(860) 509-8075 
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